
City of Stevenson 
 

   Phone (509) 427-5970                                7121 E Loop Road, PO Box 371 
   Fax (509) 427-8202                                     Stevenson, Washington 98648 

 
 
 

April 2023 Planning Commission Meeting 
 

Monday, April 10, 2023 
 

6:00 PM 
 

A. Preliminary Matters 

1. Public Comment Expectations:      
 

In Person: Attendees at City Hall should follow current CDC and State guidance 
regarding use of masks, social distancing, and attendance. 

Webinar: https://us02web.zoom.us/s/85637388112  Conference Call: +1 253 215 8782 
or +1 346 248 7799 ID #: 856 3738 8112  

Commenters must raise their hand and be acknowledged by the Chair. Individual 
comments may be cut off after 3 mins. 

Tools: *6 to mute/unmute & *9 to raise hand 

 

2. Public Comment Period:     (For items not located elsewhere on the agenda) 

3. Minutes:   February13th, 2023 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes. The March 13th, 
2023 was cancelled 

B. New Business 

4. Conditional Use Permit Request:   (CUP2023-01 Cascade Pump Station) 

a.   Appearance of Fairness Disclosures 

b.   Presentation by Staff 

c.   Presentation by Applicant 

1



d.   Public Hearing 

1.   Comments in Favor 

2.   Comments in Opposition 

3.   Comments Neither in Favor nor Opposition 

4.   Close Public Hearing 

e.  Commission Deliberation 

f.   Decision 

5. Short Plat Review:     SP2023-01 Knudsen Short Plat Planning Commission Optional 
Review 

6. Short Plat Review:     SP2023-02 Richard-Steeves Short Plat Planning Commission 
Optional Review 

7. Updating Public Comment Expectations:     Considering additions to the current agenda 
content 

C. Old Business 

8. Shoreline Public Access:    Presentation from The Watershed Company 

9. Subcommittee Reports:     Updates from Subcommittee leads and discussions on 
Downtown Parking and Annexation Policy 

D. Discussion 

10. Staff & Commission Reports:     Broadband, East Loop Road Water Project, Wastewater 
Treatment Plant/Moratorium 

11. Thought of the Month:    Rural Urbanism 
- https://www.cnu.org/publicsquare/2023/03/30/rural-urbanist-towns-contradiction-or-
future  

Parking Reform Network - https://parkingreform.org/resources/parking-lot-map/  

E. Adjournment 
 

2



 

October 2014  Page 1 of 4 

 

DRAFT Minutes  

Stevenson Planning Commission Meeting 
 

Monday, February 13, 2023 

6:00 PM 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT Planning Commission Chair Jeff Breckel, Commissioners Auguste 

Zettler, Davy Ray, Charles Hales, Anne Keesee 
 
STAFF PRESENT Community Development Director Ben Shumaker, Planning & 

Public Works Assistant Tiffany Anderson 
 
PUBLIC PRESENT James & Sharon Joan Hatten, Mary Repar, Rick Jessel, Glenn 

Damon, Mr. & Mrs. Sciacca  
 
 Chair Jeff Breckel called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Preliminary Matters 
1. Public Comment Expectations Breckel welcomed everyone. He asked Community Development 

Director Ben Shumaker to provide participants information on 
providing public comments. He explained the tools to use for remote 
participants: *6 to mute/unmute & *9 to raise hand. Commenters 
must raise their hand and be acknowledged by the Chair. Individual 
comments may be limited to 3 minutes. 

2. Public Comment Period (For items not located elsewhere on the agenda) 
>Mary Repar commented on water rates, housing needs, street trees. 

3. Chair Annual Elections Breckel opened nominations for the positions of Chair and Vice-
Chair. 

Commissioner Zettler nominated Breckel for the Planning 
Commission Chair position for 2023. Commissioner Hales 
seconded. 

Commissioner Keesee nominated Zettler for the Planning 
Commission Vice-Chair position for 2023. Breckel seconded. 

No additional nominations were provided. 

Following the nominations Breckel called for a vote to approve the 
nominees as presented: Breckel for the position of Planning 
Commission Chair and Auguste Zettler to the position of Planning 
Commission Vice-Chair. 

● Voting aye: Breckel, Ray, Zettler, Hales, Keesee. 

4. December 12th, 2022 Minutes MOTION to approve the minutes from the December 12th, 2022 
Planning Commission Meeting as presented was made by Hales, 
seconded by Commissioner Ray. 

● Voting aye: Breckel, Ray, Zettler, Hales, Keesee. 

3



 

October 2014  Page 2 of 4 

 

New Business 

5. Parking Determination Unstaffed Utility or Communication Facility 

 Shumaker requested the Stevenson Planning Commission determine 
the number of parking spaces required for a “Utility or 
Communication Facility”. This request is made by Planning 
Department staff in anticipation of several permit requests from the 
Stevenson Public Works Department for this type of use. 

 Issue: In SMC 17.42.090, the Zoning Code currently lists a number 
of use classifications and the corresponding parking requirement for 
each use. Requirements for the Utility or Communication Facility 
use are not listed. The Planning Commission is given the authority to 
determine the parking requirement for uses that are not specified. 

 Following a brief discussion, the Planning Commission concluded 
the following: 

 Findings 

1. The Planning Commission supports the Comprehensive 
Plan’s objectives related to minimizing the impacts of 
development and to facilitating efficient short-term parking 
and minimizing off-street parking requirements. 

2. When impacts of parking at Unstaffed Utility or 
Communication Facilities occur, they are minimal, 
intermittent and short in duration. 

 Determination 

 For the purpose of SMC 17.42.090, “Table of Minimum Standards—
Off-Street Parking”, the Planning Commission determined Utility or 
Communication Facilities (Unstaffed) do not require any spaces in 
any district. 

 MOTION to adopt the determination as presented was made by 
Zettler, seconded by Keesee. 

 ● Voting aye: Breckel, Ray, Zettler, Hales, Keesee. 

Old Business 

6. Subcommittee Reports Shoreline Access, Downtown Parking, Annexation Policy 

 Shoreline Access. Ray reported he is reviewing the current plan and 
will be attending meetings on Wednesday and Thursday. Shumaker 
shared the consultants have been busy analyzing the current 
shoreline environment to determine where gaps are occurring. He 
added a stakeholder open house would be held on Wednesday, 
February 15th, 2023 at the Stevenson Community Library from 5-7 
p.m. The following morning (Thursday) there will be a focus group 
at 10 a.m. to review the meeting results. Outreach to the public has 
taken place via mailers, social media, newspaper announcements and 
postings at City Hall. Stakeholders include shoreline property 

4



 

October 2014  Page 3 of 4 

 

owners, recreationalists and others with an interest in accessing the 
local shorelines. 

 Shumaker has been meeting with Shoreline property owners and has 
been sharing feedback with the consultants. The shorelines under 
evaluation are along Rock Creek, Rock Cove and the Columbia 
River. He confirmed trails are still a part of the discussion, and 
Skamania County and Port of Skamania County are both involved. 
He offered a brief explanation of the state’s requirements for a 
Shoreline Access Plan as well as what it will provide to Stevenson 
regarding identification of access points and budgeting guidance for 
capital improvements. 

 Downtown Parking. Keesee was unable to attend a recent City 
Council workshop that addressed parking. She asked Shumaker to 
provide information. He noted the pending approach to parking 
regulations will likely be more comprehensive, with more of an 
effort to develop solutions. Finding a way to balance the impact less 
onsite parking will have on overnight street parking will involve 
working with Public Works. 

 Costing out a parking improvement plan would provide a way to 
determine the value of a parking space. An in-lieu parking fund paid 
via developers is under consideration, as is re-striping to capture 
additional space, relocating fire hydrants, and development of a 
municipal lot. Shumaker provided an example of switching the 
parking lane to the north side of Vancouver Avenue. This is possible, 
but the expected increase in traffic along Russell and Second Street 
would need to be evaluated. 

 Zettler and Breckel both commented acquiring a lot would add 
substantial expense and time to any project. Hales spoke to his 
experience in various sized cities and suggested a reasonable 
inventory of parking sites leads to people figuring it out. 

 >Repar stated home driveways need to be sized appropriately to 
prevent vehicles from encroaching onto sidewalks or streets. 

 Shumaker noted the parking study performed last September did not 
identify a significant demand for parking. Commissioners suggested 
July may be a better time for a survey to gain additional data. 

 Annexation Policy. Hales reported he is not sure where the 
collaboration the County stands currently but that City 
Councilmember Michael Johnson is interested in participating.  

 Shumaker advised the county Planning Department is experiencing 
staffing changes which may be affecting communication. He went on 
to say the sub-committee is looking to better understand what 
densities are permitted inside and outside City limits. He stated work 
is being done with the city’s GIS consultants to get the base mapping 
in place and develop some draft material for use in comparisons. 
Hales and Breckel suggested a working group be formed to connect 
with Skamania County to lay out the steps for working together. 

5



 

October 2014  Page 4 of 4 

 

 Breckel agreed with the need for basic information. He stated it is 
also important to get an understanding of the physical characteristics 
of the land and how it is being currently used. He shared the 
importance of being aware of the cost annexation of low-density 
parcels can bring to a city. (Hales' internet connection was then lost.) 

Discussion 

7. Staff & Commission Reports Planning & Public Works Assistant. Tiffany Anderson was 
welcomed as the new Planning and Public Works Assistant. She 
introduced herself and provided details on her background and 
experience. 

Broadband. Shumaker reported broadband is on the City Council’s 
priority list. A number of opportunities have come up, including 
technical assistance grants from Washington state; large increases in 
federal funding through the recent Bipartisan Infrastructure Law, and 
programs and tech assistance from WSU Extension to determine the 
existing infrastructure in place for broadband delivery and how/if 
residents can access it. 

 Breckel spoke of rural communities and their need for broadband 
service. He likened it to a necessary utility much like electricity 
because of its use in shopping, medical care, education, services and 
other daily activities. 

 >Repar commented on the need for a public utility that provides 
reliable, affordable and consistent internet connectivity. 

 Permit Applications & Systems. Fully updated planning permit 
applications are on the city’s website in advance of changing to more 
online options to increase efficiency. The city is in a partnership with 
Skamania County for building official services. Getting the intake 
protocols aligned will reduce Andersen’s workload as the 
applications can only be submitted when complete. Breckel pointed 
out it will help clarify what information the public needs to complete 
a permit. 

 East Loop Road Water & Street Project. State gas tax grant funds 
have been awarded to address several road projects, including East 
Loop Road where a water line replacement will also be completed. 

8. Thought of the Month Zoning Reform Discussion. 
https://www.planning.org/podcast/arbitrary-lines-author-nolan-gray-
on-zoning-reform-and-hitting-plannings-reset-button/  

Adjournment MOTION to adjourn at 7:24 p.m. was made by Commissioner 
Keesee, seconded by Commissioner Zettler. No objections. 

  

Minutes recorded by Johanna Roe 

6

https://www.planning.org/podcast/arbitrary-lines-author-nolan-gray-on-zoning-reform-and-hitting-plannings-reset-button/
https://www.planning.org/podcast/arbitrary-lines-author-nolan-gray-on-zoning-reform-and-hitting-plannings-reset-button/


   Page 1 of 4 
 

City of Stevenson 
Planning Department 

 

(509)427-5970  7121 E Loop Road, PO Box 371 
Stevenson, Washington 98648 

 

TO: Planning Commission 
FROM: Ben Shumaker, Zoning Administrator 
DATE: April 10th, 2023 

SUBJECT: CUP2023-01: Cascade Pump Station 
 

Introduction 
The Stevenson Planning Commission is requested to review the following project proposal:  

“The existing sanitary sewer pump station is outdated, requires frequent maintenance, lacks 
modern telemetry and failure alarms, and requires reconstruction to continue serving this 
community. The existing aboveground pump enclosure will be removed and new 
submersible pumps will be installed in the existing underground wet well. The existing 
aboveground pump control panel will be removed and relocated, providing improved 
clearance for the adjacent Port of Skamania County parking area. A 4’ tall retaining wall will 
be constructed to provide a working surface level with the road to support pump station 
maintenance work. A 3’ tall chain link fence will be installed to provide fall protection along 
the retaining wall. 

The project is proposed within public right-of-way adjacent to 240 SW Cascade Ave. Categorized as a 
“Utility or Communication Facility”, the proposal is listed as a conditional use in its C1 Commercial District 
location and allowable subject to approval by the Planning Commission with a Conditional Use Permit. 

Recommended Action 
Staff recommends Planning Commission approve this permit subject to the findings, conclusions, and 
conditions in Attachment 2. 

Guiding City Policies 
Zoning Code 

SMC Table 17.25.040-1 Residential Districts Use Table (Abbreviated) 

Use CR C1 M1 

Transportation, Communication, and Utility Uses    

Utility or Communication Facility C C8 P/C9 

8- Despite the general exclusion of overhead elements from this use category, any utility or communication 
facility in the C1 district with an overhead element greater than 50 feet is considered a conditional use. 

 

SMC Table 17.135.040-1 Transportation, Communication, Information, and Utility Uses (Abbreviated) 

Use Description Reference 

Transportation, Communication, and Utility 
Uses 

  

7



   Page 2 of 4 
 

Utility or Communication Facility 

Any staffed or unstaffed location designed for the 
transmission, distribution, collection, treatment, and/or 
routing of water, wastewater, gas, electrical power, wired 
telecommunications or similar commodities or wastes. 

This category generally includes substations, transfer 
stations, pump stations, lift stations, booster pumps, 
reservoirs, switchboards, and storage facilities. This 
category generally excludes a Wireless 
Telecommunications Facility, storm water ponds, 
overhead elements and cables, underground cables, 
pipelines, vaults and the like. 

 

 

SMC 17.39.020 Conditional Use Permit Review 

A. The Planning Commission shall review all applications for conditional use permits. 
B. In granting a conditional use request, the Planning Commission may attach to the conditional use 

permit such reasonable requirements as will ensure that the development in its proposed 
location: 
1. Will not endanger the public health or safety; 
2. Will not substantially reduce the value of adjoining or abutting property; 
3. Will be in harmony with the area in which it is located; and  
4. Will be in conformity with the Comprehensive Plan, transportation plan, or other plan 

officially adopted by the Council. 
C. At least one public hearing shall be held for each complete conditional use permit application. 

Notice shall be given as provided in this title. To ensure adequate time for public notice, a 
complete application must be received at least 20 days before a hearing will be held. 

D. The Planning Commission shall reach a decision to approve or deny a conditional use request 
within 30 days of the last public hearing deemed necessary by the Planning Commission for the 
relevant application. 

E. The Planning Commission may attach reasonable conditions to a permit, including but not limited 
to, the term of a permit’s duration and the need for periodic review to ensure that the terms of a 
permit are being met. 

SMC Table 17.12.030 Administration Commensurate with Comprehensive Plan 

It shall be the duty of the Planning Commission, Board of Adjustment, City Council and zoning 
administrator to interpret and/or administer the provisions of this title in such a way as to carry out the 
intent and purpose of the Comprehensive Plan. Where zoning regulations are not clear, or where there 
are inconsistencies within this title, the comprehensive Plan shall be referred to for interpretation and 
guidance. 

Proposal Background 
Site Characteristics 

Owner/Applicant: City of Stevenson/Wallis Engineering 
Purpose: To upgrade and modernize Utility or Communication Facility 
Location: in the right-of-way adjacent to 240 SW Cascade Avenue 

 Zoning Land Use 

Subject Property C1 Commercial Street, Utility or Communication 
Facility 

8



   Page 3 of 4 
 

North C1  Railroad 

South R3 Multi-Family Residential Single-Family Detached Dwelling 

East C1 Government Administration Building 

West C1 Railroad 
 

  

2016 Site Photos 

  
Key Issues 
Pre-Existing Conditional Use 
A wastewater pump station currently exists at this location. The existing facility pre-dates adoption of 
Zoning Code requirements for a Conditional Use Permit. Issuance of a Conditional Use Permit would allow 
modifications to the existing use. Should the pump station require modification again, the applicants 
would then be able to rely on the current permit. 

Climate Change 
[Placeholder for discussion based on 2023 Planning Commission work plan discussion]. 

Associated Permits 
In addition to the Conditional Use Permit requested for this project, 2 administrative approvals are 
required. A Building Permit is required for a small retaining wall south of the facility. A Critical Areas 
Permit is required for impacting a wetland buffer. The proposal is outside of Shoreline Jurisdiction.  

Proposal Area 

9



   Page 4 of 4 
 

 

Community Input 

Notice was sent to nearby property owners and posted at 2 locations near the project site and published 
in the Skamania County Pioneer. As of this writing no verbal or written comments or questions have been 
received. 

Alternatives 

1. Deny this request based on its inability to meet the criteria of SMC 17.39. 
2. Approve the Conditional Use Permit as drafted. 
3. Take some other course of action as a Commission. 

Prepared by, 

 

Ben Shumaker 
 
Attachments 

1. Draft CUP (2) 
2. Application (16) 

10



 

  Page 1 of 2 
 

City of Stevenson 
Planning Department 

 

(509)427-5970  7121 E Loop Road, PO Box 371 
Stevenson, Washington 98648 

 

 

 

Conditional Use Permit #2022-03 

PROPONENT: City of Stevenson 
LOCATION: Public right-of-Way adjacent to 240 SW Cascade Avenue 
DECISION DATE: April 10th, 2023 
REVIEW DATE: The first Planning Commission meeting in October, 2024. 
PURPOSE: As provided by SMC 17.39 and SMC 17.15, this Conditional Use 

Permit allows a Utility or Communication Facility (Wastewater Pump 
Station). 

 

Findings of Fact: 

1. The Planning Commission has reviewed this application for a Conditional Use Permit after 
a duly advertised public hearing on April 10th, 2022. 

2. The proposal allows for upgrading and continuance of a long-standing Utility or 
Communication Facility use. 
 

Conditions of Approval 

1. This Conditional Use Permit shall be valid only for the proponent at the location above. 
2. Noncompliance with the conditions of this permit shall render this Conditional Use 

Permit invalid. 
3. The proposal shall be subject to periodic review by the Planning Commission to ensure 

the terms of this permit are being met, determine whether changes to these terms are 
warranted, and to verify satisfactory longevity of the proposal. 
 

Conclusions of Law 

Based on these findings and conditions, the Planning Commission is satisfied that this 
Conditional Use proposal: 

1. Will not endanger the public health or safety; 
2. Will not substantially reduce the value of adjoining or abutting property; 
3. Will be in harmony with the area in which it is located; and 
4. Will be in conformity with the comprehensive plan, transportation plan, or other plan 

officially adopted by the council. 
 

 
11



 

  Page 2 of 2 
 

THIS CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT (CUP2023-01) FOR: 

A Utility or Communication Facility (wastewater pump station) 
in the C1 Commercial District 

in the public right-of-way adjacent to 240 SW Cascade Avenue. 

IS HEREBY ISSUED. 

For the Planning Commission: 

 
 
____________________________________________________________ 
 Date 

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



   Page 1 of 1 
 

City of Stevenson 
Planning Department 

 

(509)427-5970  7121 E Loop Road, PO Box 371 
Stevenson, Washington 98648 

 

TO: Planning Commission 
FROM: Ben Shumaker, Short Plat Administrator 
DATE: April 10th, 2023 

SUBJECT: Proposed Short Plat (SP2023-01) 
 

Introduction 
The Planning Department has received a complete short plat application for division of property on 390 
NW Chesser Road in the City’s R1 Single-Family Residential District. The tax lot number is 03-07-36-1-3-
2900-00.  

The property is currently developed with a single-family detached dwelling and residential outbuilding. 
Two lots are proposed for use as single-family residential. 

The proposal involves City water and sewer service. 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission bypass its review of the short plat and entrust the 
decision on the application to the Land Division Administrator. 

Relevant City Policies 
SMC 16.02.110(C): After the short plat administrator determines that the proposed short plat application 

and map contain the required information and data, the short plat administrator shall distribute 
copies of the short plat application and map to the following as is necessary:… 
4. City Planning Commission. 

SMC 16.02.120(F): The Planning Commission may submit any findings and recommendations to the 
administrator for any short plat applications it has decided to review. 

Thank you, 

 

Ben Shumaker 

 

Attachments 
• Proposed Plat Map 

29



30



   Page 1 of 1 
 

City of Stevenson 
Planning Department 

 

(509)427-5970  7121 E Loop Road, PO Box 371 
Stevenson, Washington 98648 

 

TO: Planning Commission 
FROM: Ben Shumaker, Short Plat Administrator 
DATE: April 10th, 2023 

SUBJECT: Proposed Short Plat (SP2023-02) 
 

Introduction 
The Planning Department has received a complete short plat application for division of property on 390 
NW Kanaka Creek Road in the City’s R1 Single-Family Residential District. The tax lot number is 03-07-36-
1-4-2090-00.  

The property is currently developed with a single-family detached dwelling and residential outbuildings. 
Two lots are proposed for use as single-family dwelling. 

The proposal involves City water service and use of on-site septic systems. 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission bypass its review of the short plat and entrust the 
decision on the application to the Land Division Administrator. 

Relevant City Policies 
SMC 16.02.110(C): After the short plat administrator determines that the proposed short plat application 

and map contain the required information and data, the short plat administrator shall distribute 
copies of the short plat application and map to the following as is necessary:… 
4. City Planning Commission. 

SMC 16.02.120(F): The Planning Commission may submit any findings and recommendations to the 
administrator for any short plat applications it has decided to review. 

Thank you, 

 

Ben Shumaker 

 

Attachments 
• Proposed Plat Map 

31



32



   Page 1 of 1 
 

City of Stevenson 
Planning Department 

 

(509)427-5970  7121 E Loop Road, PO Box 371 
Stevenson, Washington 98648 

 

TO: Planning Commission 
FROM: Ben Shumaker, Planning Director 
DATE: April 10th, 2023 

SUBJECT: Agenda Content – Public Comment Expectations 
 

Introduction 
Planning Commission meetings are run efficiently and with a well-maintained order. This is reflected in the 
current public comment expectations section of the agenda. This section sets expectations for how public 
comment can be given. This section lacks expectations for how order can be maintained if public 
comment becomes disruptive. The Planning Commission is asked to evaluate whether the section should 
be expanded to more fully anticipate the range of meeting scenarios. 

Current Wording 
The section currently reads: 

In Person: Attendees at City Hall should follow current CDC and State guidance regarding use of 
masks, social distancing, and attendance. 
Webinar: https://us02web.zoom.us/s/85637388112  Conference Call: +1 253 215 8782 or +1 346 
248 7799 ID #: 856 3738 8112  
Commenters must raise their hand and be acknowledged by the Chair. Individual comments may 
be cut off after 3 mins.  
Tools: *6 to mute/unmute & *9 to raise hand 

Potential Wording 
Staff prepared this wording for use by the Board of Adjustment in their ad hoc meetings: 

In Person: Attendees at City Hall should follow current CDC and State guidance regarding use of 
masks, social distancing, and attendance. 
Webinar: https://us02web.zoom.us/s/85637388112  Conference Call: +1 253 215 8782 or +1 346 
248 7799 ID #: 856 3738 8112  
Commenters must raise their hand and be acknowledged by the Chair. Individual comments may 
be cut off after 3 mins. Disruptive individuals may be required to leave the meeting. Persistent 
disruptions may result in the meeting being recessed and continued at a later date. 
Tools: *6 to mute/unmute & *9 to raise hand 

Decision Point 
Does the Planning Commission desire this change or some similar effort to establish protocols in advance 
of issues? 

33



Commission Meeting Date: April 10, 2023   

 
CITY OF STEVENSON, WASHINGTON 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 
 

AGENDA TITLE: Overview of the Integrated Shoreline Public Access and Trails Plan 

DEPARTMENT: Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: Alex Capron, AICP, Senior Planner - DCG/Watershed  

  

PROJECT SUMMARY 
The City is completing an Integrated Shoreline Public Access and Trails Plan (Shoreline Public 
Access Plan), as funded by Washington State Department of Ecology as part of their Shoreline 
Master Program (SMP) competitive grant pilot program for the 2021 – 2023 grant biennium.  

As reasons for this planning document, the City prioritizes continuous public pedestrian access 
in shoreline jurisdiction along the shorelines and shorelands of the Columbia River, Rock 
Creek and Rock Cove, within both City limits and the City’s urban growth area (SMP Public 
Access policy 4.6.2(1)). Shoreline jurisdiction roughly encompasses all waterbodies within City 
limits, including 200 feet landward the Ordinary High Water Mark. 

This plan is a direct result of the City’s recent Shoreline Master Program (SMP) 
Comprehensive Update and Periodic Review, prioritizing public access to shorelines of the 
State, along with environmental resource protection and water dependent use. This is backed 
by state law within the Shoreline Management Act (SMA), per Washington Advisory Code 
(WAC) 173-26-176(3)(a) -underline emphasized-:   

“Alterations of the natural condition of the shorelines of the state, in those limited 
instances when authorized, shall be given priority for… shoreline recreational uses 
including but not limited to parks, marinas, piers, and other improvements facilitating 
public access to shorelines of the state… and other development that will provide an 
opportunity for substantial numbers of the people to enjoy the shorelines of the state.” 

In addition, the City’s SMP calls for this Shoreline Public Access Plan to address public access 
accordingly (SMP 4.6.2(6)): 

The City’s should develop a comprehensive and integrated public access and trail plan 
(consistent with WAC 173-26-221(4)) that identifies specific public access needs and 
opportunities to replace these site-by-site requirements. Such plan should identify a 
preference for pervious over impervious surfaces, where feasible. 
 

The efficiencies providing such a plan result in greater efficiencies and understanding for both 
City and public/private developers in showing a defensible planning strategy for implementing 
public access trail routes, improvements and other required amenities, while keeping a clear 
delineation between public versus private-only access to shorelines of the state. 

34



Planning Commission Meeting – 4/10/23 | Stevenson Integrated Shoreline Public Access & Trails Plan 2 
 

The goal of this plan is to distill planning-level documentation, spatial analysis, and public input 
into a set of prioritized shoreline projects within and connecting shoreline jurisdiction for future 
grant funding applications with agencies such as the Washington State Recreation and 
Conservation Office. 

 
ORDERS OF THE DAY 
This is a visually-based introductory presentation to inform Planning Commission of the public 
process and analysis measures for this Shoreline Public Access Plan. No formal decisions will 
be made at this meeting. 

ATTACHMENTS 

 None. 

SCHEDULE 

• Project Kick-off (October 2023) 

• Public Engagement Plan (January 2023) 

• Public Meeting #1 Open House (February 2023) 

• Planning Commission Meeting - April 10th, 2023 

• Public Meeting #2 Charrette April 19th, 2023 

• Planning Commission Meeting – May 8th, 2023 

• City Council Work Session – June 14th, 2023 

 

PROJECT OVERVIEW  
The most recent Open House (held February 22nd, 2023) was well attended, with over 20 total 
attendees present and 133 comments received on an array of thematic maps. These maps 
displayed physical and environmental constraints, existing networks and land ownership, and 
shoreline experiences (visual, land and water-based). A general summary of public comments 
can be found in Figure 1 below: 

35



Planning Commission Meeting – 4/10/23 | Stevenson Integrated Shoreline Public Access & Trails Plan 3 
 

 
Figure 1 - February 2023 Open House 
Public Comment Topics  

Public desires derived from the Open House include neighborhood connections to each 
shoreline, shoreline vegetation enhancements, preserving the rural character of the shoreline, 
and educating the public on where formalized public access is, or could be with future projects. 

With findings from the Open House, the 2nd public meeting (held April 19th at the Stevenson 
Community Library) will present nine possible projects in and around shoreline jurisdiction in a 
charrette format. For reference, a charrette is a collaborative effort to solve specific design 
and/or planning topics in an efficient manner. The charrette will contain a series of three 
stations displaying project types, photo examples from other communities and design mock-
ups to visualize possible design alternatives. This meeting will allow the public to weigh in on 
project preferences in an interactive and meaningful way. 

36



Planning Commission Meeting – 4/10/23 | Stevenson Integrated Shoreline Public Access & Trails Plan 4 
 

These nine projects were identified via public feedback from the February open house and 
community survey, existing City master plan documentation, and via a Geographic Information 
Systems (GIS) analysis. Specific to the GIS methodology, we assigned scores of favorability to 
different physical, network, and land use/ownership areas from a presence/absence 
standpoint. For example, Lidar-based digital elevation models (DEMs) were used to derive 
level of steep slope (and resulting trail suitability) where the following scores were assigned: 

- 0 to 10 degree slope: score of 4 (most favorable) 

- 10 to 25 degree slope: 3 

- 25 to 50 degree slope: 1 

- 50+ degree slope (cliff): 0 (least favorable) 

In looking at ownership, City-owned parcels are assigned the highest score (12) versus other 
public or quasi-public property (County or Columbia Gorge Interpretive Center Museum-owned 
property, respectively), containing a score of 4. As a result, areas with the highest scores are 
most suitable for a trail, whereas lowest scores have the most constraints and difficulties 
constructing trail or public access facilities. 

Network analysis looked at the County and City walkability layer from two perspectives, both 
looking at good and poor walkability area within and adjacent to shoreline jurisdiction. Here, 
candidate projects look at enhancements to existing pedestrian amenities, as well as 
candidates for improving gaps in walkable areas approaching and within shoreline jurisdiction. 

Outside the report itself, the City will evaluate possible SMP amendments to make its 
regulations more consistent with possible projects. Formal review and adoption of these 
amendments will take place this summer or fall after Ecology grant window closes on June 30, 
2023. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

37


	Top
	1.	Public Comment Expectations
	2.	Public Comment Period
	3.	Meeting Minutes
	02_13_23PCMeetingMinutes

	4.	Conditional Use Permit Request
	CommissionReport(CUP2023-01)

	5.	Short Plat Review
	CommissionNotice(SP2023-01)

	6.	Short Plat Review
	CommissionNotice(SP2023-02)

	7.	Public Comment Expectations
	CommissionReport(PublicCommentExpectations)

	8.	Shoreline Public Access Planning
	PC Agenda Item_2023.04.10

	9.	Subcommittee Reports
	10.	Staff & Commission Reports
	11.	Thought of the Month
	Bottom

